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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and for the Year Ended June 306, 2012

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Bixby's financial performance provides an overview of the
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Please read it in conjunction with the
transmittal letter and the City's financial statements, which follow.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Bixby (the "City")
and its component wnits using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statements No, 14, 34 and
39, Included in this report are government-wide statements for each of two categories of activities -
governmental and business-type.

The government-wide financial statements present the complete financial picture of the City from the
econamic resources measyrement foeus using the accrual basis of accounting, They present governmental
activities and business type activities separately and combined. These statements include all assets of the
City (including infrastructure) as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt).

About the City

The City of Bixby, Oklahoma (Bixby or the City) was admitted as a to ip in 1906, The City is under
a Home Rule Charter and is ruled by a "Council-Manager Government” as designated under Title 11 of
the Oldahoma Statutes. As a charter oity, the citizens from each of the City's five wards elect a couneil
member to represent their respective ward, At the first meeting after the time prescribed for the beginning
of the terms of newly elected council members, the council elects from its membership a mayor and vice-
mayor, The current population of the City is approximately 21,000.

The City provides the following services: Public safety; streets and roads; water and wastewater services;
culture-recreation; public improvements; planning and zoning; and general administrative services,

The City's Financial Reporting Entity

This anmual report includes all activities for which the City of Bixby City Council is fiscally responsible.
These activities, defined as the City's financial reporting entity, are operated within separate legal entities
that make up the primary governmerit.

The City's finaneial reporting entity includes the primary government (City of Bixby) and the
blended component units as follows:

s The City of Bixby - that operates the public safety; streets and roads; cultore recreation; public
improvements; planning and zoning; and general administrative services,
s The Bixby Public Works Authority - that operates the water and sewer services of the City.

Using This Anwwual Report

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
ptinciples. The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City's financial condition
and changes therein at two distinct levels:

o The City as A Whole (a government-wide presentation)
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* The City's Funds (a presentation of the City's major and aggregate non-major funds)

The City's various government-wide and fund financial statements are presented throughout this
annual repost and are accompanied by

* Management's Discussion and Analysis - provides useful analysis that facilitates a better
understanding of the City's financial condition and changes therein.

* Footnotes - elaborates on the City's aceounting ptinciples used in the preparation of the financial
statements and further explain financial statement elements.

* Supplemental Schedules - provides additional information about specified elements of the
financia] statements, such as budgetary comparison information.

Reporting the City as s Whole
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

One of the most frequently asked questions about the City's finances 1s, "Has the City's overall financial
condition improved, declined or remained steady over the past year?", The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer this question. These statements include alf assets and Habilities using the accrual basis
of accounting. All of the current year's revenues and expenditures are taken into account ropardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them from the prior year, You can think
of the City's net assets - the difference botween assets and liabilities - as one way to measure the City's
financial condition, or position, Qver time, increasss or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator
of whether its financial health is improving, deteriorating, or remaining steady. FHowever, you must
consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the City's property tax base, the condition of the
City's roads, and the quality of services to assess the overall health of the City.

As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the city
into two kinds of activities:

¢ Governmental activitics - Most of the City's basic services are reported hete, including the police,
fire, general administration, streets, and parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, and fines finance most
of these activities.

* Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover the cost of certain services
it provides. The city's water and sewer setvice are reported here.

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the city
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants, However,

management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular DUrposes o
to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other woney.
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Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash, The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed shori-term view of the City's general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's
programs, The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements o those in the
Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each Governmental
Fund financial statement.

Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside
customers or fo other units of the City’ - these services are generally repofted in proprictary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes i Fund Net Assets. In fact, the City's
enterprise funds are essentially the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide
statements but provide more details and additional information, such as cash flows.

The City as a Whole

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of'a government's financial position.
For the year ended June 30, 2012, net assets were as follows:

TABLE1
NET ASSETS (in Thousands)
Goyernmental % Ine, Busimous-Type % Toc. % Tne.
Antivitier (Hac) Activiting {Theed T fad (B}
(rastated) (restated)
2012 2018 w12 2011 2012 antt
Current pagsts 5 20,446 40 24% % I 9,836 3% 0§ 10,625 $ 36,773 1%
Capital assets, oot A5 38,478 12% 45,689 42,307 % 111,376 100,786 11%
Totnl assets k6,103 85,4148 1% 55 Bal 31,143 7% 143,001 137,589 3%
Current liabilitles 3,813 3,557 % 2,0m2 1,218 0% 5,885 4,773 23%
Nou-¢mvent labifities 24,498 17,149 -10% 10,693 9,831 12% 35,181 34,706 “¥%
Total Habilitles 28,311 30,106 -B%: li,’]gﬁ 10,759 19% 41,076 41 A47% 1%
Net assots
Invested in capital assets,
et of rolated debt 47,180 42,460 11% 24,467 32,408 6% 81,647 74,568 9%
Rostriotod 5,639 5459 -37% 5,001 5946 -1% 11,540 14,835 -22%
Unragtripted . 3,001 3,361 43% 2,735 3,020 -9% 7,738 438§ 2%
Total mot aspety $ 57‘;322 LR 6% 8 43,103 % 41374 M % 100,925 §  9h0R4 5%
ALY, PORTIRCIRLO L LA

The above numbers reflect an increase in net assets of 6% for governmental activities and an inerease of
4% for business type activities. Overall, the net assets for both governmental and business-type activities
increased 5% over last fiscal year.

Governmental activities current assets decreased approximately $6.5 million or 24% due mainly to the
purchase of capital assets, which caused capital assets to increase approximately $7.2 million or 12%.

Business-type activities liabilities inoreased approximately $2 million or 19% due mainly to new long-
term debt that was issued during the year.
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For the year ended June 30, 2012, net assets of the primary government changed as follows:

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (In Thousands)
Gavorsmental % lae, BunlngesType % Ina, % Tne,
Activiges Pee) Artlvitlen Pea) Tatal Dee)
FliF] 1L 84z o, a0z 1)

Risvenilen .
Cliysgen B wervice 1] 1,783 3 LT3 A% $ Téll [T 2% % 90 F s 11%
Op erapiig ranks sad contributions 818 627 -1% e N - 518 621 1%
Capltal gt st contelutions (103 5,163 4% 1 14R4 Bl 1,24 6447 g1i9
Taita 11,538 10,745 k1) - - 1L 10,756 T
Entasgtriramental rovenus 129 125 1% N & - o139 7} 1%
Investmomt ndione 9% 107 8% 28 40 % 123 149 ~16%
Miseellrocona Ti6 L A6% 32 130 -7 188 1,499 «49%

Totwl Fevwmne lﬂ& 12,830 <21% 1,908 F270 A% 23,608 28,108 8%
Expansex
Genergl govermmet 2493 2,420 «I% " “n P 3,499 2,520 -1%
Public sty 5251 4,946 5% e o= B 5281 4956 5%
Strosts 1,548 1,692 % % s ‘ 1543 1898 9%
Culfisrg, paitis and reoraation 942 £31 3% S H & 242 LK) 13%
Conctry . 137 142 A% 5 B [EY] 142 4%
Eioyonis dovelopisent 14D 127 10% ¥ e 140 137 i
Iokerest on Jong.temm delt Lae 210 2% I a i 1019 [11] 2%
Water » - “ 5,429 4,657 19% p A1} 4551 19%
Wastewster - u s 1.703 1324 11% 1,701 1,528 11%

Totul expenzes 11,535 B 118 4% 7,232 fA ] 1% 18,347 17,383 "%

Exeea (ledieksoy ) bolbre

brmeeforn 4,154 8,712 S2% L4 b ALY ~58% 454 1817 A5

T rana fera !I_lllﬂ! 1,864 R 3482 5864 %
Change bn wet ahasts L3 6,04k S5¥h K129 Loy 5854 Ha4l 10,817 S5%
Brgloning et nsnets (rewinied) 510 Azeel % 41,374 J7 405 % RE.084 5066 - 13%
Ending ot griets 3 ShiaR & 5470 6% 5 43,103 & 41394 L] L] 3 gE‘QUJ %

Governmental Activities capital grants and contributions decreased approximately $4.4 million or 85%
due to $1.2 million contribution from Tulsa County and $2.8 million from BPWA contributed for streets
in prior year that was not received this year, Miscellaneous revenne decreased approximately $623
thousand or 46% due to an allocation from the City of Tulsa for the Fry Creek agreement in the prior year
that was not received this year.

Business-type Activities capital grants and contributions decreased approximately $1 million or 70% due
to contributed capital that was received in FY11. The charges for services increase was due to an increase
in rates from the City’s water provider. Included in expenses of Business-type Activities of the Water
Department are expenses related to debt service requirements which are funded with Sales Tax Revemues
apportioned to the fund. The taxes are classified as general revenne on the Statement of Activities.

Governmental Activities

To aid in the wnderstanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given, Of
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changos in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses aro listed in the first column with
revenues from that particular program reported to the right, The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenne. The
reason for this kind of format s to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the
City's taxpayers. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general Tevenues or if it is
self-financing through fees and grants. Some of the individual line item revenges reported for each
function are:
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CTITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
- Management’s Discussion and Analysis
( ) As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

General Government: Permits and licenses, inspections fees, operating grants
Public Safety: Fines and forfeitures, E-911, rural fire dues, grants
Other public services: Operating grants

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note that all taxes are
classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

TABLE}
Nt Hevenne (Expanse} of Governmeutal Activitiex
(T Thousands}
Ned Revenue
Tolal Expenst % Inc. (Expenge) % Ine.
nfSnﬁle Doe) of Servces (Dec)
w12 T a1
sl govermment $ 249 £023M A% @ISR 8 (L06T)  -102%
Public safely 5251 499 % (341 (36671 2%
Streets 1,546 1,692 % 337 2,779 112%
Culture; parks aad reorealion 942 g3l 13% (809) (682) 3%
Cematery 137 142 A% (33) (40) 18%
Economic develbp meal 140 127 10% 140y (n  «10%
Tntarest on long-term debt 1i019 81 26% [I0L)] 310} 6%
Tatad 3 1,538 § 11,018 4 T3ERH 3 (3614 -121%
Business-type Activities
( ) The business-type activities had an increase in net assets of $1,729,003.
TABLEA
Net Revenie {Expouse) of Bustness-Type Activities
(I Thousands)
Net Revenne
‘Total Exponse % Inc, {Bxpense) % Ine.
of Surdlens Dee. of Bervies Dk
w2 U 022U
Water 3 550 $ 4,657 9% § 749 $1303 -43%
Wastowater 3,703 1,528 1% (1293 610 -121%
Total $ 7232 § 6,165 17% § 630 §1915 -68%
RTUMAGNIEY  BbpuaRnn PRI Rrieveseentl

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the General Fund reported sctual budgetary basis revenues over final
estimates by $603,205 or a 9.4% positive variance. General Fund actual expenditures were under final
appropriations by about:$493,645 or a 7.3% positive variance.
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKL.AHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2012, the City has $111.4 million invested in capital assets including police and
fire equipment, buildings, water and sewer lines, roads, and park facilities.

TABLX §
Capital Assets
{1a Thongands)
(Net of acenmnlated depreeiation)
Gerrmmemtal BusituessType
Antistdiss - Actiilioy : Totsl
(eeuiated) (reatated}
2012 20, 2012 2011 2012 w1
Lend $ 13,655 § 13,026 § 439 3 489 5} 14,144 % 13,515
Buiklings and improvements 3,236 3,273 726 773 1,956 4,046
M achinoty, furnityre and equipment 3,135 3462 20 299 3,358 3,761
Infraytructure 34,420 26,368 44,115 39,837 78,535 66,203
Constrattion in progreis 11,247 12,350 139 910 11,386 13,260
Totxls 5 6568 8 SRAT 3 45689 8 42308 % 1 A76 0§ 100,787
See note 4 for additional details.

Debt Adminisération

At year-end, the City has $37.9 million in outstanding notes, bonds, and capital leases, Additionally, the
City had $1.4 million in accrued compensated absences and utility deposits. The decrease in long-term
debt is attributed to normal debt service payments.

TABLES
Faug-Term Daht
{32 Thanensda)
Total
Governmionfal Tiagliean-"Yypa Parcentage
Antivities Activities Total Lhange
2013 2011 201 pLiee Wiz 2041 20112013
General obigation bouds 8 26300 % 283%0 3 S -8 3 28280 -6.9%
Cupital leanes prysblo 2 553 R B 21 §55 «62,0%
Rovenys bantk prysble w “ 3300 5,085 3310 5985 ~44,1%
Motes pryable £ B 8,048 4,094 8,048 4,054 96.5%
Depasits sublest to rofond - e 477 468 477 468 1.9%
Acerued cowmpensatod sheencen 23 T 1058 109 936 £12 15.3%
‘Totwis | 2934 % Z%ww - k1,840 § 10,656 & 19,382 3 40% -2.2%

See note 5 for additional details,
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CITY OF BIXBY; OKLAHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

After stabilizing the year before, the City of Bixby’s primary revenue soarce, the municipal sales tax, in
Fiscal 2011/2012 continued to récover towards pre-recession levels, coming in 5.24% greater than the
prior year. For the forthcoming fiscal 2012/2013 period, budgeted sales tax revemes were forecast to
grow by 9.0% over the prior yeat budget, in large part due to the entrance of a large new grocery retailer.
into the market. This means revenues will have returned to their 2008/2009 level. Expenses for
2012/2013 were budgeted to grow by 10.6% over prior year budget, ihcluding one-time contingencies
which were budgeted for using prior year cash catryover.

The 2012/2013 budget is essentially a maintenance level or “steady state” budget, in which normal
reveniue growth was consumed by increases in fixed costs (e.g., energy costs, health insurance, workers
compensation premiums, efe..). Fortunately, the mid-year opening of the community’s largest grocery
store made possible, for the first time in several years, the granting of ongoing cost-of-living pay
increases to our workforce. Improving employes compensation will continue to be a focus of
management in the next few years, a goal which will require us to continue to operate at present staffing
levels. The City did establish a new Fire Marshal position within the 2012/2013, but only at the expense
of a vacant Assigtant Fire Chief position.

After months of research and analysis including conducting a rate study by outside financial advisers, the
Bixby Public Works Authority (BFWA) enacted 4 series of multi-year phased utility rate increases,
designed to ensure revenues are generated to make various required capital improvements to the system
infrastructure. BPWA also passed along to its customers an increase in water raies enacted by the city’s
water provider, the City of Tulsa, and adopted the first increase in Bixby’s stormwater management fee
sinoe its inception 20 years ago to restore purchasing power of the fee and enable us to better accomplish
stormwater management infrastructure objectives. Finally, the City of Bixby also increased its residents’
monthly EMS fee in response to an increased charge by its service provider, EMSA, triggered by Bixby’s
increased census count, At the same time, EMSA signifioantly expanded its level of service to the
community. Bixby’s overall utility rates and service fees remain roughly comparable to those found in
other area communities.

While operating budgets will remain lean for the foreseeable future, there are a number of significant
capital improvement projects slated to be completed or injtiated in fiscal 2012/2013 and following years,
funded largely by the 2011 General Obligation bond issues, various grants, and long-term low interest
loans. These include major street improvements, expansion of the Police Department quarters within City
Hall, sewer system improvements (including a major study evaluating the best option for replacing our
lagoon systems with a mechanical plant, locally or regionally), and completion of master plan projects at
the award-winning Bentley Youth Sports Complex. A continuing special emphasis is being placed on
investment in techuology, as resources allow, improving the operating efficiency and effectiveness of
various departments, This year’s efforts include launching a major GIS update and automating police and
court citation processes.

The long term outlook for the City of Bixby remains positive, as long term local economic developrﬁent
{nitiatives take root and the national economy experiences growth. City of Bixby officials aggressively
market the community as a potential home to retailers in an effort to expand the number of locally
available shopping and dining options and boost municipal operating revenues. Bixby is known as a
friendly, attractive and rewarding place to which to relocate and prosper. Opportunity for new business
activity abounds in Bixby, which features some of the highest population growth trends and most
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favorable income and educational attainment demographics found in the state of Oklahoma, as well as a
documented retail trade gap in excess of $1.18 billon. This market potential, along with Bixby's high
quality of schools, status as the safest community in the state for cities its size, with a stable, progressive
government, a dynamic chamber of commerce, and very attractive quality of life, continue to make Bixby
a top choice for people and businesses looking to relocate to the Tulsa metro area in NE Oklahoma,

Official 2010 Census results revealed Bixby was indeed one of the fastest growing cities in Oklahoma in
the past decade, and second fastest growing in the Tulsa metro region, having grown by 57%. At just
under 21,000 people in the 2610 Census, Bixby is now the 20th largest city in the state, up from 32nd a
decade ago. And while some Tulsa metro area communities are approaching “buili-out” status, Bixby has
plenty of remaining land within its fence line to accommodate both additional residentia! growth and
significant commercial development, including along the Arkansas River,

Despite this growth, Bixby has retained a friendly, small town feel, with beautiful neighborhoods,
numerous churches, and many community amenities. In 2009, these factors led CNN Money.com to
select Bixby as ope of its Best Places to Live in America, designating it one of America’s best small
towns, Commercial developers have likewise praised the City of Bixby for being “business friendly” and
easy to work with, citing the personal attention and access to city staff.

After conducting an extensive analysis of the City of Bixby’s fiscal conditions and performance in mid
2011, the pational rating agency Standard & Poor’s assigned an “AA” rating with stable outlook to
Bixby’s 2011 General Obligation bonds, Only one city in Oklahoma has a better G.O. bond rating.
Bixby participates in the diversified Tulsa regional ¢conomy and labor market, which is recognized
nationally for its performance:

Greater Tulsa selected No. 1 place to live in the U.S. (Relocate America 2009)
No. 1 metro for cost of living (Business Facilities 2010)

No. 4 metro for quality of life (Business Facilities 2010)

No. 6 region for small business (The Business Journals 2011)

Top 100 Meiro among the leading world economies (Brookings Institution 2012)
No. 1 fastest-growing state by GUP (The Huffington Post 2010)

No. 1 state for entrepreneurship (Kaufinan Foundation 2010)

No. 3 state for corporate tax environment (Area Development 2010)

No. 4 state for workforce development (Area Development 2010)

No. 4 state for employment (Business Facilities 2010)

Top 10 state for job growth and business creation (Bureau of Labor Statistics 2011)
[.  No. 10 state for doing business (Area Development 2010)

m. No. 15 best state for top business climate (Site selection Magazine 2012)

FY e em b pap op

Bixby is well connected to the state and regional economy via an excellent set of state highways and is
less than a thirty minute drive to Tulsa International Airport and downtown Tulsa.

Bixby’s percentage of citizens holding B.S. degrees or higher is very high, (at 38%, more than 2/3rds
higher than statewide average). Bixby has the highest median home values i the Tulsa Metro Region (at
$168,500, is 70% higher than the state as a whole). Finelly, Bixby has the highest Per Capita Income in
the Tulsa Metro Region, (at $34,004, is 51% higher than state as a whole).

The Bixby Public Schools district is one of the fastest growing in the state, having this year alone
experienced a 7% growth in student population. In 2010, voters approved by an overwhelming majority

15




()

()

CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

a multi-year'$62,000,000 bond issue, without talsing taxes, for the construction and renovation of school
buildings. A new middle school was constructed and opened in the Fall of 2012 on Mingo between 151st
and 161st, and a new elementary school, currently under construction on 131st between Garnett and
129th, will open next Pall, This award-winning school system boasts excellent state test scores and
oulstanding activity programs. Beginning with the 2012-2013 school year, the Oklahoma State
Department of Education launched its A-F grading system of the state's schools. Bixby Public Schools
received some of the highest grades awarded by the state, including three individual schools with A's
grades and two with a 4.0, the highest grade possible. Less than 7% of the schools in the state received
4.0 grades. :

The 4,500 seat Spirit Bank Event Center which has for several years regularly hosted world-class
entertainment and numerous events attracting visitors from thronghout the region, recently became the
home venue for the Tulsa 66ers professional NBA Development league bauketball tear, the farm clib
for the world runner-up chatapion Oklahoma City Thunder. Having experienced such a favorable leasing
response, owners of a newly-constructed $20 million Class “A” 248 unit apariment complex, Encore on
Memarial, are now making expansion plans. This Fall, Reasor’s opened in north Bixby what is widely
considered the finest grocery store in this state and region. The first Sprouts Farmers’ Market grocery
store to locate in Eastern Oklahoma is now under construction with plans to open later this Spring,
further expanding the shopping choices available to residents. A $5 million park expansion and upgrade
at Bentley Youth Sports Complex now underway will improve several of the existing sports venucs and
add an additiona) softball quad. These imptovements will enable this outstanding sports complex to hold
even tore spotts townaments in the coming yeats, something which has proven to be a major stimulus to
area hotel and restaurant and other retail business in recent years.

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a
general averview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountebility for the money it receives. If
you have questions sbout this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance
Director's Office at P.Q. Box 70, Bixby, OK 74008 or phone at (918) 366-4430.

Respectfully submitted,

Betty Koehn
City Treasurer/Finance Direcior
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tatement of Net Assets— Jun 2012

Goyeramental Buginesa-{ype
Wil

Aciivitles Aptivities Tofal
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,556,790 § 3,518,771 $ 10,075,561
Investments 11,784,361 4,609,305 16,393,666
Aocounts receivable, net of allowance 772,314 1,440,509 2,221,823
Internal balances {47,671) 47,671 -
Due from other governments 934,282 212,306 1,146,568
Capltal Assels: :
Lamd and construction In progress 24,901,894 628,050 25,529,044
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 40,785,518 . 45,061,409 B5,846,927
Unamoriized debt lssuance costs 445430 341,208 786,647
Total Assets ' $ 86132927 $ 55,868,229 § 142,001,758
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 759,056 $ §30,266 3 1,699,222
Accruad interast payable 83,776 80,334 174,109
Due to bondholders 54,420 fu 54,420
Long-term llabilities
Due withih one year 2,915,188 1,142,356 4,057 685
Due In more than one year _ 24,487 230 10,682,811 - 35,180,144
Total labilities § 283105680 $ 12,784 807 S 41075447
~ NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt 47 179,541 34,466,914 81,646,455
Restricted by:
State statutes 4,041,930 w 4,041,930
Enabling lagislation ' BYU7,786 540,031 1,047,817
Contractual 4,089,656 5,361,025 §,450,681
Unrestricted 5,003,434 2,735,302 7,738,826
Totel net assets 8§ 57,822,347 $ 43103362 s 100,926,708

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statcments.
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Staterment of Activities —Year Ended June 30, 2012

Poygram annue

_ Siovaowetyl,  Buginase-ivee.
sﬁnmmmm Sausnsen Savicss  Conldhetions  Gomributons Aclivithey Aativities Tofa
MY govsinment
Governmental Aciivilian: N
Gionarol Govermmant $ 2,487 64 $ MMasdy % - $ {ais4084) % * & (@i5dund)
Pubiic Safaty 5,251,087 1,053,823 430,523 8800 {3,780,722) s (3.740,708)
Sirosts 1,644,381 70,068 161,648 TEGB43 (338,707} - {338,/07)
Culiure and Recreafion Bdd HOZ 22,674 ® - L 28y v {909,298}
Camatery 137,320 104,280 “ e (33,030% B {33,030)
Fumumk. isuelopimany 140,104 - - {140,408} " (148,188)
merest on Lengetenn dotd N - . 19,40 . 141
Tolel governmentsl scliviles 11 ",@ggi“‘w‘}‘g* 1, @1 LR 78308 N _““{ffa.ﬁ%
Buslfiese-Typs Ackhities:
Waoveter ‘ 1%5%; ?ﬁg’gg; s 440,348 : {:;gg,gga e
Wisiowskir - - BT 12048
Total busloses-type astivitios 1, a4 FA410,807 n 445,338 o 18,613 [IECAEN
Totalprimary govemment & 18767807 S 0184798  § 818471 8 48§ (BSMITH 8§ 018813 8§ oridmn)
Gutonsl ivenues:
Yeiwes:
Proparty laxes $  2e80Ew 4 - $ 2880511
Bales and usw faem T e - 702,809
Franhine fansn erd pubiio servine tewes Br008 e 874,080
Heialfmotal bes 135,567 - 135,687
B texas 161,360 N 161,340
Inlergovemmontal revanue nat rastrctad i apaeifie programs 180,284 - 130,264
Unrestricied invesiment enrcings ol azs 28,445 128,293
Tmmuﬂmous ?28.:% 3:12 gﬂ’? 758,735
{1,051.6 081 838 o
“Totsl general reverues snd transfars i ‘ﬁ"’#,?, - Fp% T EEAART
— Change In st asets 3,712,704 K] 4541 707
( Nt ssuts - beginning {restated) 98,083 612
N Net sbests - anding M o

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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(\) As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

veramental ds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2012

ol
Fltteen's Blanua DeidSwovivg,  OhferGevetnmuntst  Siowermental,
Sanoral Fyad. Enpd 000, Bor) Pypd 20351 Bond Fone Fupd Egnly Fungds.
Cash ant caih eduivakints LI v B ogT ¥ “ B rae0  § saier ¥ At §F panbhs
Inpeimanta 1323118 3,087, 17 L ToMB,18T aenma 2,286,880 14,872,487
Inikreat rocehvmbiy 8 . S - = - -
Recoivabls from ofher gavermmenta 808,713 P800 - - 2055 304,744 1,448,868
Due frgm otber tunda 8081 x K 6420 413 35,904 140,858
Tawoa recehvabie, net 81464 e + & £ 2221 113,686
Crourt fieius recaivable, net BH.200 W . % % B 571,200
Anbulance vocalvalde, not 14,038 e a; - - ® 14,038
Utfitien Fcalvabic, et - . « - . 1047Y 19,677
Oty roveivabine 25504 & - * 2048 26,162 63,704
Ivitisles e » 'w [ - E =
Prspsiit] sepeneos. . - " = - - -
Toul et B .1 A 1% BT TSRS YOI Yo
LIGRILFTERS 03 UMD BALANDES
Liskiitiaa: N
Acoonts phyibla $ 4LE10 % . N 1 o087 8 F g 482083 % 886,820
At pagiod payabls 192495 o B e = 20,183 2UBEH
Due to athur fls 48,823 | 44 . Lo 108,832 63,580
Dua 5 hondhiobders 4,420 u - ® = - 54,420
{ederred tavin Apb,784 ¥ i W 12,165 35,250 W49
Otherpayadiss '-‘ x - = » o 508
Tot i - 44 P A BT S TSI
Fund bgianoes:
Reslrighyd n AT 1481,982 4128248 17122408
Gulumdmd - 62,4858 49,118 1,080,843 s.ggg.::g
nssaky " - * -
Total fund belanwes - T TEIARD 1 1 b L AT
Totetliabillios end fored badanicas i " g m S £5”

See accompanying notes to the basic finuncial statements,
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mled June 30, 2012

Citlzenis,
Bleoned, 5018 Band Bervige,
tiqpems) Fund Eynd 2008 Bond Furd Eungd Fusd

REVENUES

Propaty Llexes . $ - $ . $ 2,867,060

Sales ard use lax 4,197,308 1,873,908 i . 5

Franchige and miscebansous faxed &74,988 - ey - o

Intargowvanmimental 801,343 & R - e

Licanses and parmils 934,099 ES W o -

Chargen for earvicen 276,004 - X w? 202

Fines & forfaiturey 783,458 B -, «

Invariment amings 10,481 13,904 0,268 52.459 B.ﬁsﬁ

Miscallaneousa 327,082 . 28,038

Tolal revenues T405,838 1567 082 33185,

EXPENDITURES . . _
Adminiabretion 350,500 - “ w W
City stiomay 94,784 S % « *
Municipal court 28,879 o % & e
Communiy service 8,767 < - - &
Goneral govemment 775,784 = « & K
Police 2474605 E - - ¢
Flre 2010811 B ] E W
Emergoncy Manegement 26,081 - 4 & F
Biraals 478,224 # - - -
Cultura end recreation 19,335 @ s sat “
Cemetary 122,782 e 2 Al -
Egenomic develapment “ . - oy
E-841 X w %, . «

Caphal mutlay AB,08¢ ] 4,087,208 2,223,061 e

Dbt sorvice:

Prirgipal 35,328 R . x 1,850,000
Interest and other charges 451 . - e 80800
Total axpendiures 6,678,405 z AL5NE0. 233,081 w‘gm

Excase {deficlensy) of revenues over
expendituray

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In
‘Transfars out

Total cther financing sourees and uses

Net changs in fund balances
Fund balances « beginning
Fand balances - efding

18,747
70500
{i1,28%)

775,981

2,205,328
5 h9BE

(4, 245,801)
(3,545,501

242,19%
Brgdas
515,350

Dther, Jstal
Goyemnmontal, GQovarpwantal
Funds Eiengds,
-8 2867080
2,115,168 7,804,457
296,897 1,474,886
45,180 846,523
k) 334,950
604,820 801,117
“a 789,458
23,614 115.057
401,268

..,..a..‘?,ﬁ.. B RREL j_ 2%9?5 &MQ

¥ 380,890
a 84,784
- 93870
£ 3,787
i 776,704
- 2,474,505
. 2,010,811
o 28,081
323,818 840,042
731,297 750,672
ES 2012 124,704
138,230 199,299
84,369 8d, 368
2,777,088 9,118,285
w12 2,204,497
8842 1,011409

LRSI 20,169,488

1,474,308 . B 3,068,510

iy, - - 5,453,262
1,AT4282 - - {2.216,172)
{2,669,702) {2,970,86%) {250,108) l3.106.b63}

2,530,762 9,850,742
M

827284 1,867,062 MOMOR (27050 {250,108) {888.991) {4,92,608]

6,550,668

(7,008 BaY)
139

(7.088.060)

1,780,378 .....?.Q.E?_ﬁ;giﬂ_
S L8N, BNEedl L.J“@“‘i& whn it B0ETZ,

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconeiliation of Governmental Funds and Govermment-Wide Financial Statements:

Total fund batance, govemmental funds $ 23138672
Amounis reported for govarnmental activities In the Statement of Net Assels are different because:
Caplial assets used in governmerital activities are not current financlal resources and therafore ars nat
reportad in this fund flnencial statement, but are reported in the govarnmental activities of the Statement
of Net Assets. 65,687,412
Certain other fong-term mssets are not available to pay current period expenditures and therefore are not
reported in this fund financial statemnent, but are reported In the govermnmental activities of the Statement
of Net Assets.
Unemodized debt lssuance costs 445,439
Qther long-term agsats re not available to pay far current period xpehdlturas and therefore are
defered in the fiinds. 504,209
Certain special revenus funds are used by management 16 perform business-type actvities. The assets
and liabilities of these speclal revenue funds are included in business-type activitiss In the Statemant of
Net Assets,
Water and Sewer Development Fund {640,081)
Chtzen's Planned Fund {3,9156,350
{4.455381)
Soma liabllitles (such as Notes Payable, Gapital Leasa Gontract Payable, Long-tern Compensated
Absences, and Bonds Payable ), are not due and payabls in the current perlod and are not Included in
the fund finangial staternent, but are included In the govemmantal petivitles of the Statement of Net
Asgals,
Agcruad interast payable (83,775)
Capital lease obligation (210,848)
Gereral obligation bonds (26,300,000)
Bond premium {70,053}
Accrued compensated absencas 831428
21,498,204
Net Agsets of Govemmental Activitiez in the Statement of Net Assete §  B7@2347

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Net change in fund balaness - tatal governmental funcs: 5 (7,068,060)

Arnounts reported for Governmental Activities In the Statement of Activities are different becausa:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets and bond issue costs as expenditures bacause
such outlays use current financlal resources. In conlrast, the Statemennt of Activities reports only a
portion of the outlay as expense. The outiey 13 allocated over the assats’ estimated usaful lives as
depreciation expense for the period. .

Capital asset purchases capitallzed 9,071,554
Capital assels contributed 697,518
Depreciation expensa ‘ ' (2,534,860)
Book value of dispozed capltel assets (25,521)

7,208,601

Governmantal funds report hond issuance coste as expendilures while governmental activities
report amorlization expense 1o aliocate those expenditures over the term of the bonds:
Amortization expense (45,230)

Revenues In the Statement of Actlvities that do not provide current financlal resources are not
reported as revenuss In the funds:
Deferrad revenue 73,862

Carfaln special revanue funds are used by management o perform buainess-type activitles. The
net change in fund balanices of thase special revenue funds are included In business-type activities
In the Statament of Net Assets!

Water and Sewsr Devalopment Fund 1,029,270
Citizen's Planned Fund {242,181)

787,089

Dabt proceeds provide current financlal resources to govemmantal funds, but lssling debt Increases
long-tarm llabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditura In
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilitios In the Statement of Net
Asgots!

Principal peyrnants on long-term debt 2,294 457
Amortization of bond premium 5,423
2,298,880

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not raquire the use of current financlal

resources and thesa are not reported as expendituras in governmental funds:
Change in accrued interest payable (15,417)
Change in accrued compensated absences _ {128,422)

{141,839)
Change In net assets of govemmental activities $ 3,112,794

See accompanying notes to the basic financiel statements,
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Bixby Public
Works Authority
ASSETS
Current assets.
Cash and cash aquivalents $ 4,323,003
Inveetmants 402,679
Resirioted:

Cash and ¢ash equivalents 35,087
Due from other funds 134,124
Accounts receivable, net 1,449 509

Total currant assets 3,044,402
Non-current assets:

Restricted:
Cash and cash eguivalents 848,783
investments 1,164,530
Capital assels:
Land and construction in progress 628,050
Other caplital assets, net of accumulated deprectation 45 061,409
Unamortized issug costs 341,208
Total non~clament asssts 48,043,080
Total assots 3 51,088,472
LIABILITIES
Current liabillfies:

Accounts payable $ 452,631

Salaries payable 40,707

Accrued interesi payable 80,334

Due to other funds 21,462
Depaosits subject to refund 47,633
Compensated absences 20,862
Notes payable 718,76
Bonds payable 365,000
“Total current llabilities. 4. 747,580
Non-current liabliiies:

Compensated ahsences 83,847

Deposits sublect to refund 479,688

Notes payable 7,320,002

Bornds payable 2,860,284

Total non-current labilities 10,692,811
Total labilities 12 440,491

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assats, net of related debt 34,466,914
Restricted for debt service 1,445,675
Unrastricted 2,735,302
Total net assets § 38,647,881

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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June 30, 2012

ixby P
Works Authoriiy
REVENUES
Water 3 8,142,023
Sawer 985,501
Miscallaneous 32,307
Total operating revenues 7,158,831
QOFERATING EXPENSES
Adminlgtration . R 1,389,519
Water 3,833,865
Wastewater 436,912
Amortization expense 105,322
Depreclation 9is2 880
Total Operating Expenses 8,758 508
Oparaling incomsa 401,123
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment ravenus 8,218
Loss on disposal of capital assets {54,642}
Interest exponse: (383,468
Total non-operating ravenus {expenses) 459,891}
Income (loss) before transfers {58,768}
Capital contibutions 435,668
Transfers in 5,354,859
Transfers oul (3.216,606)
Change in nef assets 2,516,067
Total net assets - beglnning 36,131,880
Total net assets - ending 3 §§£647.981

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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Reconcilintion of Proprietary Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Total net assets, proptiotary funds $

38,647,981
Amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets arg different bacause:
Cortain speclal revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type aclvities. The essets
and liabililes of these spacial revenus funds are included In business-type activities in the Statement of
Net Assets,
Water and Sawar Davelopment Fund ‘ ] 540,031
Citizen's Piannad Fund 3915,350
4456,381
Net Assets of Business-type Activities In the Statement of Net Assets § 43,103,360
Met change In net assets - total propristary funds: $ 2,516,092
Amounts reported for Business-type Activities in the Statement of Activities are differant
because:
Certain speoial revenue funds are uged by management to perform business-typa activities,
The net change in fund balances of these special revenue funds are included In business-
type activities in the Statement of Net Assets:
Water and Sewer Davelopment Fund {1,029,270)
Gitizen's Planned Fund 242,181
{787,080)
Change in net assets of business-iype activities $ 1,720,003

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recolpts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employsas
Receipte of customer meter deposits
Refunds of customer meter deposits
interfund receipts
Interfund payments
Net cash provided by operating activitles

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funda
Transfers to other funds

Net cash providad by noncapital financing sctivitles

CABH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds from debt
Principal paid on debt
Bond issuance costs paid
interest and fiscal agent fees paid on dabt
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and relzted financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of Investments
Intarest and dividends

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net Increass In cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beginning of year
Balances - end of year
Reconciliation to Statemant of Net Assets;
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current

Restricted cash and cash aquivalents - noncurrent
Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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Bixby Public
Works Authorjt

$§ 6903328
(3,797,706)
(1,507,381)

88,208
(78,397)
52,317
(448,234)
1,212,134

5,354,869
{3,215,505)
2,130,264

(4,449,732)
4,715,595
(3,000,980)
(48,500)
(369,920)

{3,164,537)

64,192
8,216

72,408

268,269

1,987 694

$ 1,323,093
36,087
848,782

$ 2,206,063

{Conlinued)




CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( ) : As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 201 ontinyed

Recongiliation of operating incoma to net cash provided by
Operating Activities:

T 30

Operating income § 401,123
Adjustments to reconclle operating income to net cash provided
{used) by operating actlvities:
Depreciation expense 982,690
Amortization expense 105,322
Changs in assels and liabilities: '
Due from other funds 52,317
Dua to other funds (448,234)
Accounis recsivable {256,302)
Accounts payable 373,151
Accrued salaries payable 11,340
Deposits subject to rafund 9,809
Accrued compensated absences (4,375)
Due to other governments (14,7071
Net cash provided by operating activities 5 1!212'.134
Noncash activities:
(— ) Forgiveness of debt 8 435,596
$ 435 596
( : ) See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements:
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City's financial reporting entity includes the primary government (City of Bixby) and the blended
component unit as noted below. This annual repoxt includes all activities for which the City of Bixby
City Council/Manager is fiscally responsible.

In determining the financial reporting eutity, the City complies with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14, 34, and 39 and includes all component units for which
the City is financially accountable. ‘ R

The City of Bixby — that provides the public safety, health and welfare, strects and highways, parks and
recreation, and administrative activities. ,
The City of Bixby has a population of approximately 21,000 located in northeast Oklahoma, The City is
a Council/Manager form of government that provides for three branches of government:

Legislaﬁve; the City Couneil is the governing body elected by the citizens
Executive — the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City
Couneil ,

% Judicial — the Municipal Judge is a practicing attorney appointed by the City Council

The City provides typical municipal services such as public safety, street maintenance, culture, parks and
recreation.

Blended Component Units:
» The Bixby Public Works Authority — that operates the water and sewer services of the City.

This component unit is a Public Trust established pursuant to Title 60 of Oklahoma State law. Public
Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power. The Authority is generally created fo finance City services
through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt and to enable the City Council to
delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the Anthority, The Authority generally
retains title to assets which are acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other Authority generated
resources. In addition, the City has leased certain existing assets at the creation for the Authority to the
Trustees on 2 long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trust, receives title to any residual
assets when a Public Tmst is dissolved.

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting
Governmenit-Wide Financial Statements:

"The statements of net assets and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic
resources measurement focus. Under the acerval basis of gecounting, revenues are recognized when
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

eamed and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are recorded when the lisbility is incurred
ot economic asset used.

Program revenues in the Statement of Activities are revenues that are derived directly from each activity
or from parties outside of the City’s taxpayers, The City has the following program revenues in each
activity:

¢ Public Safety — Fire, Police, Ambulance — fines and forfeitures, ambulance fees, fire run charges,
911 revenue and restricted operating grants,

*» Btreets —~ Commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State and other restricted
operating grants, ' _

»  Cultare, parks, and recreation — park usage fees, fishing license fees, operating and capital grants.
Cemetery - cemetery revenues ‘ -
General Government — licenses and permits and restricted operating grants.

Al] other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue even
if restricted for a speeific purpose.

Governmental Funds:
The City*s governmental funds include;

Major Funds:

‘¢ General Fund - accounts for all activities not accounted for in other special-purpose funds, Pue
to the implementation of GASB 54, the General Fund also fncludes the Rural Fire, Fighing
License, Cemetery Beautification and Cemetery Maintenance accounts.

*» Citizen’s Planned Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for % cent sales tax restricted for
sewer system improvements and debt service,

% 2008 Bond Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for bond proceeds used to finance parks
and street improvements.

e 2011 Bond Fand — a capital project fund that accounts for bond proceeds used to finance streets,
parks and recreation, and public safety improvements.

¢ Debt Service Fund - a debt service fund that accounts for receipt of ad valorem taxes and used to
make debt service paymenits for general obligation bonds..

Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds):

Special Revenue Funds:

® Park Fund —accounts for % penny sales tax used to improve and maintain Bentley Park.

@ E911 Fund — accounts for revenues received from tariff rates on base line telephone
charges and expenditures for operations and maintenance of the F-911 system,

» Fry Creck Maintenance Fund - accounts for the ongoing maintenance of the Try Creok
Channel.

# Economic Development Fund — accounts for revenues received from hotel lodging tax
and expenses to enhance the City’s ability to attract new industry to the area.
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Capital Project Funds:

« Cemetery Care Fund — accounts for 12.5% of cemetery revenue restricted by State law
for cemetery capital improvements.

e Capital Improvement Fund — accounts for % cent sales tax for capital improvements.

e Street and Alley Fund — accounts for revenues received from gasolihe excise tax, motor
vehicle tax and expenditures made for street maintenance and operations.

« 2007 Bond Fund — accounts for bond proceeds used to finauce parks and street
improvements.

« Stormwater Management Fund — accounts for revenues from stormwater fees and
expenses for maintepance and capital improvements of the stormwater system.

s Water and Sewer Development Fund — accounts for revenue from water and sewer
development fee and expenses for watex and sewer maintenance and improvements.

Debt Service Funds:
s 2006 Debt Service Fund — accounts for %4 penny sales tax restricted for paying principal
and interest on general obligation bonds of the City.

The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting, On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues ate recorded when eamed and measurable and available to pay
current financial obligations, while expenditures are recorded when incurred and payable from current
financial resources. The City defines revenue availability as collected within 60 days of period end.

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the resnlt of the use of the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level.

The General Fund, Citizen’s Planned Fund, 2008 Bond Fund, 2011 Bond Fund, and Debt Service Fund
are considered major funds and are therefore displayed in separate columns. All other governmental
funds are considered non-major funds and are aggregated under the column titled Other Governmental
Funds.

Proprietary Funds:
The City’s proprietary funds include:
Enterprise Fund

# Bixby Public Works Authority Fund that accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing
water and sewer services to the public.

The proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and ecomomic resources
measurement focus. For business-type activities and enterprise funds, Financial Accounting Standard
Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before
November 30, 1989, have been applied, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

For purposes of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets, operaling revenues
and expenses are considered those whose cash flows are related to operating activities, while revenues
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and expenses related to financing, capital and investing activities are reported as non-operating or
transfers and contributions.

C. Measurement Foens and Basis of Acconnting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measmement
focus applied.

Mensuremient Focus

On the government-wide Staterent of Net Assets and the Statement of Activitics both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the économic resources measurement forus as defined in ifem b
below.

In the fond financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “sconomic
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate;

&, All governmental funds utilize a "owrrent financial vesources” measurement foous, Only current financial
assets and lisbilitics are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present
sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fand
balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary fund wtilizes an "economic resources” measurement focus. 'The accounting objectives of
this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets {or cost recovery),
financial position, and cash flows. All assets and Habilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with -
their activities are reported. Proprietary fimd equity is classified as net assets,

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-type activitios are presented using the acerual basis of accounting, Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the lability is incurred
or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and labilities resulting from exchange
and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting, Under this modified acerual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable
and available”. Measurable means knowing or befng able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current perlod or soon enough thereafter (within 60 days of period. end) to pay
current liabilities. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related find Lability is
incurted, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

All propristary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,

revenues are recognized when eamned and expenses are recorded when the liability i3 incurred or economic
asset used,
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D. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity
Cash and Investments

For the purposes of the statements of net assets, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, "cash and cash
equivalents” includes all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposits or short-term
investments with an original maturity of threée months or less. Ynvestments of the promissory note trustee
accounts are considered cash equivalents.

Tnvestments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market price.
Receivables

In the govemnment-wide statements, receivables cousist of all revenues carned at year-end and not yet
received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise
taxes, ad valorem taxes, grants, police fines, and ambulance fees. Business-type activities report utilities as
its major receivables.

I the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revemue accruals such
as sales tax, franchise tax, ad valorem tex, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since
they are usuaily both measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not.available are
deferred in the fund financial statements in accotdance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the
povernment-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment
carnings are recarded when eatned only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both
measurable and available. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of
accounts receivable.

Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets
are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fond operations and whether they are reported in
the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for as capital assets. Al capital
assets are valued at historical cost, or estitnated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated
capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated historical
cost was used to value infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2002,

Depteciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets, Depteciation is provided
over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. A capitalization
threshold of $1,500 is used to repott capital assets. The range of estimated useful lives by type of assct is as
follows:

- Buildings 10-60 years

- Machinery and Equipment 3-30 years
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- Infrastructure 5-60 years
- Other Improvements 5-60 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financiel statements, capital assets used in governmental fund cperations are aceounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental find upon acquisition, Capital assets wsed in propristary
fund opetations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements,

Restricted Assets

Restricted agsets include cash and investments of the proprietary fund that are legally restrioted as to their
use. The primary restricted assets are related to revenue bond trustee accoumts and utility meter deposits,

Long-Term Debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund
financial statements,

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in
the government-wide statements, The long-term debt consists of notes pryable, capital leases, general
obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and acerued compensated absences. :

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not repotted as linbilities in the fund financial statements. The
debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as
expenditures, The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the
government-wide statements,

Compensated Absences

The City's pdlioies regarding vacation, sick, and compensatory time permit employees to accumulate
varying amounts as determined by management and contracts with employee groups.

Compensated absences are reported as acorued in the povemment-wide and proprietary financial statements.
Governmental funds report cnly the matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating
employees,

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:

Equity s classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

@ Tnvested in capital assets, net of relatod debt — Consists of capital assets inchiding restricted capital
assets, net of accumnulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balmces of any bonds,

mortgages, notes, ar other borowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets,
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b. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external
groups such as oreditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested
in capital assets, net of related debt”.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net asscts are available.

Governmenial Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. These classifications are defined as:

a. Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (1) not in spendable form
ot (2) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

b Restricted — consists of fund balance with constraints placed on the use of resources either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or
(2) laws through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City’s highest
level of decision-making authority is made by ordinance. Currently, the City has no committed fund
balance.

d  Assigned — includes amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to be used for specific purpases
but are neither restricted nor committed. Assignments of fund balance may be made by ¢ity council
action or management. decision when the city council has delegated that authority. Assigoments for
transfers and interest income for govetnmenta! funds ate made through the budgetary process.

e. Unassigned — represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted fund balance prior to the use of the unrestricted fund balance
when an expense is inourred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are
available. The City’s policy for the use of unrestricted fund balance amounts require that committed
amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts when
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used. ,

E. Revenues, Expenditares, and Expeﬂses

Sales Tax

The City presently levies a three and one half cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales
tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month following
receipt by the Tax Commission. Two cents is recorded in the General Fund, three-fourths cent in the

Citizen’s Planned Fund, one-fourth cent in the Capital Tmprovement Fund, one-fourth cent in the 2006
Debt Service Fund, and the remaining one-fourth cent in the Park Fund.
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Sales tax resulting from sales occutring prior to year-end and received by the City after year-end have
been accrued and are included under the caption “Due from other governments”. They represent taxes on
sales occurring prior to year-end.

Property Tax

Under State law, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax. Such tax may only be
levied to repay principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt approved by voters aund any
court-assessed judgments.

At the present time the City lovies a property tax to fund the annual debt service requirements of
general obligation bonds outstanding, '

The property tax levy, as determined by the City’s debt service needs, is submitted to the County
Excise Board for approval, County assessors determine the taxable value of real estate and
personal property in the County. A State Board of Equalization hears complaints on real estate
values with the power to equalize agsessments, Under present State law, the ratio of assessed value
{o true value canuot be less than 11 percent not more than 13% percent,

Property taxes levied by the City are hilled and collected by the County Treasurer’s Office and
remitted to the City in the month following collection, Property taxes are levied normaily in
October and are due in equal installments on December 31 and March 31. Property taxes umpaid
for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable lien on property in the following October,
Property taxes levied, but not collected during the year or within 60 days of year-end are reported
as deferred revenue,

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City's net assessed valuation of taxable property was

$194,438,075. The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of net assessed valuation for the year ended
June 30, 2012 was $13.50.

Operating Revenues pnd Expenyes

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds ave those that result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods and/or services. Tt also includes all revenue and expenses not related to
capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities,

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and
business-type activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified ag follows:
Governmental Funds - By Character; Current {(further classified by function)

Debt Bervice
Capital OQutlay

3p




()

()

CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Proprietary Fuod - By Operating and Non-Operating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary
funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

F. Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities

Tn the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement of Net Assets
and Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund
financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified. ‘

Fund Financial Statements:

Intetfand activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprictary fund categories is reported
as follows in the fund financial statements:

1. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment ate reported as
interfund recetvables and payables.

2. Tnterfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as
revenues and expenditures/expenscs.

3. Inferfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible  for' certain
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reporied as
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds.

4, Tnterfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not
expected are reported ag transfers in and out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial
statements as follows:

1. Internal balances - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund
receivables and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities
columns of the Statement of Net Assets, except for the net residual amounts due between
governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

9. Internal activities - amounts reported as intetfund transfers in the fund financial statements
are eliminated in the govetnment-wide Statement of Activities except for the net amount of
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as’
Transfers - Internal Activities. The effect of interfund services between funds, if any, are
not eliminated in the Statement of Activities.
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G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures;
accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investmenty

For the purpose of the statements of net assets, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or shori-term
investments with an original maturity of three-months or less and money market accounts. ‘

At June 30, 2012, the reporting entity held the following deposits and investments:

Primary Government:
Carrying
Type Muturitiey ) Rating Value
Deposits:
Demund deposits $ 9,213222
Cash on hand 250
Time deposit Due within 1 year 16,323,668
25,607,138
Investments:
Goldman Sachs F8 Tax Fund #0477 At 56
Cavanal Hill Cash MG Fund #0051 Asgrtaf 831,497
Cuvanal Hill US Treas-Admin #0002 Asa-mf 30,536
862,089
Total deposits and invesiments $ 2654695227

Recuneiliation 1o Statement of Not Asgets:

Cash-and cash equivalents $ 10,075,561
Investmients 16,393,666

$ 26,469,777
T —— e

Custodial Credit Risk — Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name, or collateralized without a written or
approved collateral agreement, Exposure to custodial credit risk related to investments exists when the
City holds investments that are yninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by
its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name,

The City’s policy as it relates to custodial eredit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral,
valued at no more than market value, at least at 4 level of 110% of the uninsured deposits and accrued
interest thereon, At June 30, 2012, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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Investment Credit Risk - The City has no investment policy thet limits its investment choices other than
the limitation of state law as follows:

a.  Direct obligations of the U. 8. Government, iis agencies and instrumentalities to which the full
faith and credit of the U. S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full
faith and credit of the Siate is pledged.

b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable
collateral wifh in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings
accounts in out-of-state financial institntions. ,

¢. Federally insured certificates of deposit issued through the Cettificate of Deposit Account
Registry Service (“CDARS”) by financial institutions located in the United States, provided that (i)
the funds are initially invested through a financial institution that is participating in CDARS (ii)the
fimancial institution received reciprocal deposits from customers of other financial institutions in an
amoust equal to the funds initially invested; and (iii) each such certificate of deposit is in an amount
that is eligible for full FDIC insurance coverage.

As noted in the schedule of deposits and investments above af June 30, 2012, all of the City’s
investments in debt securitics were rated Aaa-mf by Moody’s.

Investment Interest Rate Risk - the City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
matutities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interesi rates.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - the City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one
issner. Since the City has all investmenis in certificates of deposit, government securities, or money
market accounts, there is no concentration of investment credit risk exposure.

Restricted Cask and Investments — The amounts reported as restricted assets of the proprietary fund
statement of net assets are comprised of amounts restricted for debt service, debt reserve, construction
purposes, worker’s compensation escrow and Public Works Authority customer utility deposits. The
restricted assets as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Current Nonourrent
Cash and cash Cash and eash
cquivalents  eguivalents {nvestments
Series 2002 Revenue Bond Account $ 56 5 - b -
Series 2002 Reserve Account i 476,112 ®
Series 2002 Sinking Fund Account 3 4 *
2000 OWRB DWSRF Construction Account 30,536 % i
Series 1994 Sinking Account 14 - 4
Series 1994 Reserve Accoutit - 255,368 e
BPWA Debt Service CDs = 704,512
Worlter's Comp Escrow 4478 @ .
- Meter deposits W 17,303 460,014
Total $ 35,087 $ 848,783 & 1,104,530

42




CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( ‘) As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

3, Accounts and Notes Receivable

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable of the business-type activitics consist of customers ulilities
services provided, both billed and unbilled, due at year end, reported net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts. The governmental activities receivables include fines receivables,

Less: Allowsmce Net
Accounts for Uneollectible Agcounts
Receivable Acgounts  Recelvablo
Governmental Antivitiea: : ‘
Franchise taves C $ 91464 §. . . 94
Count flncs 1,142,827 {571,200) 571,627
Ainbulance fees 34,021 y 34,621
Stormwater 45,829 I 45,829
Mher tgxes 28,373 = 20,173
Total Governmental Avifvities § . L343514 5 (571,200) % T¥2,314
Business-Type Activities:
Uhtilities $ 1604386 4 (134,877) & 1449509

' 4. Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital Assets:

Capital assets consist of land, land improvement, construction in progress, buildings and building
improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure, Capital assets are reported at actual or
estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of donation.
For the year ended June 30, 2012, capital assets balances changed as follows;
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Restated
Balance at Balance at
Tuly O1, 2011 Additions Disposals Jume 30, 2012
Gavernmenial qtivities;
Capital assas not being depreciated:
Land $ 13,026,244 § 628,575 $ - § 13,654,821
Construction in progress 12,549,873 8,357,038 9,454,838 11,247,073
Totn! onpital assets not baing depreciated 25,376,119 $.980,613 0.454,838 24,901 894
Other capital asseis:
Buildings and improvements 4,499,590 60,853 = 4,560,441
Infrastructure 44,188,211 9,669,270 - 53,857,481
Machinery, furniture and equipment 8,636,676 514,174 219,083 9,930,767
Total othet capital sssets at historical cost 54,324 477 10,243,207 219,083 68,348,691
Tess aceuinuiated depreciation for: ’ )
Buildings and improvements ' 1,226,755 104,067 P 1,330,822
Infrastructure 17,820,490 1,615,667 . 19,436,157
Machivety, fornitore and equipment 6,174,628 815,127 193,562 6,796,194
Total accunmiated deprecintion 25,221,875 2,534,860 193,562 27,563,173
Other capital assets, net 33,102,602 7,708,437 25,521 40,785,518
Govemmental activities capitel assets, net 8 58,478,721 $ 16,689,050 b3 9,48{}5359 $ 65,687,412
Business-type activifles:
Capital assets not being depraciated:
Land $ 488,651 b - 5 - § 488,651
Construction in progress 909,841 4.412,109 5,182,551 139,399
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,398,492 4,412,109 5,182,551 628,050
Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements - 1,503,905 6,648 - 1,510,553
Machinery, funiture and squipment 1,386,398 4,282 12,355 1,878,326
Infrasttuature 50472042 - 5,209,242 85,953 55,595,320
Total other capiinl assets at historical cost 53,862,345 4,220,170 98,310 58,984,208
Less accumulated depreciation for!
Buildings and improverments 731,252 53,312 = 784,564
Machinery, furniture and equipment 1,587,804 81,988 12,355 1,657,437
Infrastructure 10,634,721 847,389 1,313 11,480,797
Tota! accuraulated depreciation 12,953,777 982,660 13,668 13,922,799
Other vapitel assety, net 40,908,568 4,2%7482 84,642 ~ 45.061,409
Business-type activitics capital assets, net $ 42,307,060 $ 2,649,591 5,267,193 8 45,689,458

Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. Depreciation expense has been allocated as

follows:

Governmental Activities: Business-Type Activities:

General government % 1,075,551 Water $ 375,250
Public safety 566,635 Wastewater 581,862
Sireets 699,437 Administration 25,578
Culture snd recreation 181,445 g 982,660

e oo
Cemetery 18,7492
TR
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5. Long-Term: Dobt and Debt Service Requirements

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the reporting entity’s long-term debt changed as follows:

Balasies Balanee Bue Within
TypeafDebt July 1,201} Additons Daduciions June 30, 2012 One Year
Governmensal Achivities:
Goneral obligation bonds 5 28250000 3 - 8 3950000 B 26,300,000  § 2,640,000
Capital lsase payable 555,405 - A48T 210,948 108,913
Ancroed compensated absences Jo3.b0s 128,423 5E 831,428 166,286
Total Governmental Aotivitios § 20508410 § 128i423 $ &294&45 g 27&376 $ 2,915,199
Business-Type Activitless
Revenus bonds payabls § 55000 S s § 695000 & S 330000 % 355000
Notes Payable 4,093,834 4,715,595 761,576 B,047.853 ~Tig,71
Deposits Subjeot to Refund 467,512 2,809 o 471,521 47,643
Accrsed sompensited abraness 108,184 - 4,375 104,809 20,962
Total Business-Type Activities 10,655,530 4,728.404 3,440.95] 11,930 083 1,142,356
Total Long-Term Debi $ 40163040 3 4;153,327 $ 5735408 0§ 39083980 § 4057535
RoconcHiutlon fo 8 tatament of Wet Avsetu:
Governmental Activities:
Dug within one year $ 2,915,19¢
Dnze i mars thah one year 244457235
Less wnamoriized bond premnipm (70,053)
Total Governmentyl Activides Long-Torm Tinbilities 5 27342576
Bustuvss-Type Aetbvitioss
Dag within one year ] 1,142,354
Boe in wore than one vear 10,692,911
Add back unamortized charge on vefding snd disesunt 104,716
Total Buainass-Type Activities Long-Term Linbilities £ 11,835,983
Governmental activities long-term debt:
Capital Lease Obligations;
$218,811 lenss obligation for the purchase of a 2001 Pierce Customn Contender, payable in annual
installments of 522,958 with in anmual interest 1afe of 5.4%, final payioent due June 2614, 3 42,353
$561,649 lease obligation for purchase of 2008 Pierce Punper, payable in monthly {nstallments of
$12,560 with an annnal interest rate of 3.5%, final payment due November 2012. 62,179
£135,5239 loase oblignion for purchnxe of 2 new mowers, payable In monthly installments of §2,508
with an savenl isderest rate of 4.25%, Tinal payment dua Apedl 2016, 106,416
Total Capita! Leascs Payable  § 2 (35948
Comrent portion  § 108,213
Nonwurrent portion 102055
Total Capital Lenses Payable  § 210,048
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General Obligation Bonds Payable:

$4,010,000 General Obligation Bonds of 1999, due in ynmual installments of $21,000 with an
annuel interest rats between 4.90% and 8.75%, final payment due November 2019, $ 1,700,000

$2,999,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2000, due in anruel installments of $270,000 with an
annual interest rate between 4.60% and 8.0%, final payment due Novembet 2012. 290,000

$6,600,000 General Qbligation Bonds of 2006, due in annual instailments of $475,000 with an
annual interest rate between 3,70% and 5.50%, final payment due June 2021 4,275,000

$7,000,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2007, dus in annval installments of $§500,000 with an
sanval inferest rate between 3.65% and 1,95%, final payment due June 2022. _ 5,000,000

$6,400,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2008, due in annual installments of £455,000 with an
armual interest rate between 3.00% and 4.10%, final payment due June 2023. 5,035,000

$10,000,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2011, duein atnual installments of $710,000 and a

final installment of $770,000 with an smmual interest rale between 2,00% and 4.00%, final

payment due June 2026, _ 10,000,000
Total Notes Paynble ] 26,30%00(}

_ Currentportion 3 2,640,000
Noheutrent portion 23,660,000

Total Notes Payable & 26!300,000

Aocerued Compensated Absences!

Current portion 166,286
Noncurrent pottion 663,142
Tatal Accrued Compensated Absences  § 831,428
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Business-type activities long-term debt;

Notes Payable:

1998 CWBRF Note Payable to Oklahema Water Resources Board dated November 18, 1998,
original amount of $4,938,787 with an anuuval interest rate of 3.22% due in semi-annual
installments of principal and interest boginning September 15, 2001, finad installnent due
March 15, 2021, payable from and secured by utility revenuies. b3 2,525 544

2009 DWSRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resowrces Bosrd dated November 19, 2009,

origingl amount of $2,160,000 with an annual interest rate of 3.23% due it semd-anmual

installments of principal and interest beginning March 15, 2011, final installment due o
September 15, 2030, payable from and secured by utility reveues. ' 1,258,401

2011 CWSRF Note Payebile to Oklahama Water Resources Board dated June 15, 2011, original
amount of $2,860,000 with an amual interest 1ate of 2.7% due in semi-anma! instaliments of
principal and interest beginning September 15, 2012, final nstallment due March 15, 2032,
payable from and secured by utility revenues, 2,204,993

Revolving Note Payable to Oklghoma Department of Commerce dated June 30, 2001, original
amoumt of $69,466 due in monthly instaliments of $386, finn] {nstellment due July 2016. 18,910

2011 Series Refunding Note original issue amount of $2,075,000, dated Qctober 27, 2011,
issued by Bixby Public Worke Authority, secured by pledged sales tax, and a security interest in
the personal property used in- conjunction with tho water and sewer systerms, interest rate of

1.87%, final maturtty May 1, 2019. 2,040.000
Total Notes Payable 8 8047853

Current portion  § 718,761

Noncurrent portion 1,329,092

Total Notes Payable 3 '8594?2353

Revenug Bonds Payable:

2002 Refunding Series Utility Systers Revenue Bondy original fioue amount of $6,080,000,
dated Angust 1, 2002, issued by Bixby Public Works Authority, secured by certain ufility
revemie and pledged sules tax, and a securily interest in the personal property wsed in
conjunction with the water and gowes systems, inferest rates from 2.45% to 7,00%, final
maturity November 1, 2019, $ 3,310,000
Total Rovenue Bonds Payable ¥ 3,310,000
Lens: Ungimoritzed Charge on Refunding (104,716}
Net Roveoue Bonds Paystde & 3,205,244

Current poition  § 355,000
Noncurrent portion 24,850,284
Total Revenye Bonds Payable  § 3,205,284

Depogits subject to Refind:
Current portion  $ 47.633
Noncurrent portion 420,648
Total Depogits Subject to Refand § 477.321
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Accrued Compensated Absences:
Current portion  $ 20,962
Noncurrent portion 83,847
Total Accrued Compensated Absences 104,809
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity:
Governmental Activities
Year Eading N General ' Capital
Obligation Bonds Lease obligations
Prineipat Interest Prineipal Ingerest
2013 $ 2,640,000 § 511,851 § 108,913 ¥ 63872
2014 2,350,000 829,379 48,999 4,060
2015 2,350,000 753,576 28,417 1,684
2016 2,350,000 677,085 24,619 476
2017 2,350,000 590,580 pres “
2018-2022 10,575,000 1,760,338 “ o
2023-2026 3,335,000 306,248 - -
Totals 4 26&005000 8 55838!'767 5 210!948 $ 133092
Business-type Actlvities
Year Exding Fune 30 Revenue
Bonds Payable Notes Payable
Bringinal Interest Eringipal Interest
2013 $ 355000 % 133,217 % 718761 8 194,568
2014 F70,000 118,895 733,513 108,737
2015 390,000 103,695 748,586 181,109
2016 405,000 87,593 763,749 163,265
2017 420,000 70,470 775,485 144,682
2018-2022 1,370,000 94,050 2,860,576 456,636
2023-2027 & . w 1,087,772 221,030
20282032 - - 1,014,412 703273
Totals S 3,310,000 & 607920 § 8702854 % 1,632,300
Less: Amount niot drawn down (6:35,001)
$ 85'047,853

Advance Refunding

On Qctober 27, 2011 the City issued $2,075,000 Promissory Note, Refunding Series 2011 with an
interest raie of 1.87% to advance refund $2,330,000 Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. The
net proceeds of $2,025,500 plus an additional $364,996 taken from the debt service and reserves fund
were deposited in an irrevocable trust with en escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments of the Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001, Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series
2001 were paid in full by June 30, 2012.
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The advanced refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $60,496. This difference was charged to operations in the cutrent year. ‘The
City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next nine years
by $248,275 and to obtain an economic gain (the difference between the present values of the old and
new debt service payments) of $255,142,

6. Fund Equity

The following tables show the fund balance classifications as shown in the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet in accordance with GASB Statement 54 and Proprietary Fund Statement of Net

Asgets:
Mo Ll
ot Capltel TMimds Setylos Fomid . Othar
Geaveral Chias 2 aon Dbt Servler | Covammientl | TOTAL
Fond | Woroed Pead | BondFued | Bond Pund Fupll Buads
Fond Batanren
Tewtrigted fou:
Stocts 3 2 - E - 328,484 A28494
Faldsivoet dnprovemants i x Vi Y i W #
Porkaivcet/public sufoty htipryvanent E i - 7,627,691 . - T6EIEA)
Tl ervice =, = L e 1451,132 1,624,459 861
Heeusuehe developmgnt s * - Ve - # -
Loy k. . ) _ . 4 - 25,008 25,086
L * 4 - i3 # 101,859 101,859
Fuy cvork s v S a B 45,089 745559
Fetnomls dovalopment * . - . " 38,408 B8
Cometary capltal % g * E 43981 4eaTE
Lapliad imperovothante = i - « » 270,295 TR0,245
itz gystent ivprovements - 3,378,396 e » - % 3878306
Stoemywaier system 5 % W ‘e T 507,786 T, T8G
Water wnd sower mahicnonnce . . - — ] - -
ettt Resclonod oo SATEG PN 71 1SR X N M XV X T
A tor
$ubnenuont yoor bedptt 117818 W " e ‘e w 1,178,755
P dige etrplopecs B74M42 W ¥ 5 - N 974,942
THimatie rocovery contiganey 250,000 u . 5 - 250800
Teebaiology autl pyshotng 200,000 + b & A u 200,000
VY opcentions 12,325 o w " - ar 12,324
Litigation contingenoy 50,000 o S # * - 50,000
Eremornis devalopment confimgency 0,000 ;_4_, - - - * 200800
“Tramsfors bo ot fands 140,060 kA ¥ i " . 140,
HYAC 125,000 “ - s 5 125,000
Sidess bax retmme - Rogal Plaze 391,430 - S = . - 1,430
Jovemile cawt flnes 4,000 & - @ " E9.000
Huea e 1,692 - - - « e 1,684
Plshsiey seiivitien LN ¥i . . “ar kS i 5476
Ceimetsey matditnines 45,480 w “ b - v 45,430
Cezetery beawtification 1,323 . « - : - 14
Steeeta - - & - - 16,123 16,123
Ferbutreotpublic safety mptavonzaots w < “ 52459 . . 52459
Dol servics - - e “ #i1 5,301 AN
Baortboy padk “ « 8 - “ 209,271 2098211
B911 . a s n 2480 2480
Pry otk 5 = - @ 397397 91397
Boagals divelngment R ¥ - 97,986 Err
Coplteld kngwovemunts B - v, B 407,596 47,59
Sower wytenn itnproveenents L 36,954 L - & - 26,954
Bltermaater ayatem iy - @t . 214,358 244358
Water and sewer maiieagiice e b - - = ami F0081
Farb-total Asslgved 459443 36,954 - $3.450 43,119 1500,541 587140
Upassignod: 390,888 - - B N - IHH86
TOTAL FIND BALANCES RN T b0l S T E e B S A
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Enterprise Funds;
Resiricted For Debt Serviee 8 1,445,675

Net asset restrictions are as follows:

State Enabling Contractual
Batyros _Legisiaiion Apremnonts Totul
Governmental Activities:
Capital Projects: -
Stormnmwater managernent 8 > $ 507,786 $ - 507,786
Street and Alley Fund 328,484 - L 328,484
Economic Development m . 38,408 38,408
Capital Improvermest Fund - 1,051,248 1,051,248
Sub-total Capital Projects 328 484 507,786 1,089,656 1,925 926
Debt Service:
2006 Debt Service Fund 1,624,459 ., i 1,624,45%
Debt Service Fund ~ 1,503,347 - e 1,503 347
Sub-total Debt Service 3,127,806 - - 3,127,806
Other .
E911 Fand 483,781 - 483,781
Cemetery Care Fund _ 101,859 - % 101,859
Sub-total Other 585.640 o - 585,640
Total Governmental Activities 4,041 830 507,786 1,089,656 5,639.372
Business-Type Activities:
Revenue Bond Trustee Accounts o 540,031 5,361,025 5,901,056
TOTAL RESTRICTED NET ASSETS ) 4§041§930 5 1,047,817 3 6,450,681 11,540,428

Beginning balances/net assets were restated as of July 1, 2011 as follows:

Government-
Wide
Governmental
Activities
Beginning net assets, as previously reported $ 51,576,932
Understatement of capital asseis 3,132,621

Beginning net assets, restated $ 54,709,553

7. Iaternal and Hiterfund Balances and Travsfers

The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfors and balances in the statements of activities and
net assets to avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances transferred between
governmental and business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and internal balances
and then offset in the total column in the government-wide statements. Tnterfund fransfers and

balances between funds are not eliminated in the fund financial statements,
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Trangfers:

Internal transfers between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Ziumda e Hoslin L ... SR .. L. ... O

Fotl Giguer! Fupd 3 R0 Cpestoos
Bh Gimeon) Fond BT Dobgaesvies
Geaerd Foud Cometery Maintensnos Mund 50,000  Oputatlops
Chamral Foad Breonomiin Devalopment Fund 20000 Doerations
Cienars] Fid Pexkc Fund 160084 Gperations
Street and Alloy Food 2004 Bond Fund 418,793 Copital sxpeudivees
Capital Imfwerveanent Food Tural Fite Fmiud TOM Reimbirss exproses
Cltizen's Flweand R BEWA 917501 Thebiservics
Cittzea's Plaonod Fand Water mst Searer Deveiopment AOD  Operstisns
Storaevater Mamgeoont Fond Fry Cronk Winittenanss Fund 150000  ‘Transfor fmding
Sewruveraver Kirehgaotont Fund £apital Foprovéosent Fund 12871 Retalorse cxpeoss
BPWA Wb and Baower Development L5395 Loan procsuds
BIWA Water onl, Sewar Developmont. AAWBSE  Caphl cxpendities
Woter and Buswer Brevelopment BEWA 500 Toostes fees
Wator ansd Seorer Development U Bo Fopul Caplial expunditores
2007 Tiowd Fund 2008 Boud Fusd Roolnas of prior yeur rendburssnent
2008 Bond Fund Waker anal Sewey Developmon Trterent

Tomm!
Racemeiltmilon te Famd Fiessl Statesseniso Heooaniliation RopeniBatlon

Govaral Fundy
TProgniutury Fuods

Balances:

H D0

kmm!limm K!,’&«

!M ! ;iswa,m 1055638

- u

TMWWM%; o
- )}

Interfund receivable and payables at June 30, 2012 were comprised of the following:

Dug Fipr Dye To Appont Nature of Balanco
Conseal Pond Stotiveaior Mansgosmeant 3 280135 Brpahye rebmbursament
Cienerg) Famd BPWA . 52,086 Corroat deposit
Goneral Fund Diebi Seevies Fund S8 Coreat deposit
Gonetal Fumd 2002 Roveatie Buxds Fund 68,856 Cowrsot dpposle
il Censral Fund 13,585 Careert doposic
Meter Eraprsit BFWA 13,182 Metor deposils
Comatery Malubgonnes Garpeal Fied 578 Fuel uzngo
Water sud Sewer Davplopmiont General Fuad 65,250 Grunt moneay
Evonomic Developmmi Genegul Fitt 3,374 Canveot deposit
Caplial mprovement Fond Glonacal Pund ¥n Comaat deposit
Caplesh Improvessst Fond 201 Bowd Pl 4,420 Covect deposit
BPWA Stonmwktar Managoment 7,650 Split depasit
PPWA Water end Sower Dovalopment Fund 215 Split dopaosit
BPWA Dbt Servicn Fusd 415 Splbiz dopouit
Park Fund Ganeral Fod 8,684 Puz] usago
2008 Bond Fund Water atid Sewsr Dovelopriont Fuud 4 ‘Corseot deposii
Flshing Yoo Fond CGegeral Fand 48 Codreet deposit
Total § 275 e022
Raoonclilation fo Fawt Flnanelsl Seatemsnis Revensillation
Dyge From Eina To B’I‘Av Spsofal Rovenss Fends 91 jgrnal Hulnnons
Clovernmeaital Fanda $ 140,508 & (253,5850) 64,981 A7.57
Propriciery Puods 34,124 {21462) GLOBLY e ATETE 671
Toal § 275 (022 § (5,002) § -

8. Pledged Future Rovenus

7 dge - The City has pledged one cent (or 28.6%) of future
sales tax revenucs and net utihty rcve:mws to repay $6,080,000 of the 2002 Refunding Series Utility
System Revenue Bonds and $2,073,000 of the Promissory Note, Refunding Series 2011, Proceeds
from the bonds provided for the purchase or construction of water and sewer systems, The bonds
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are payable from pledged sales tax revenues and net water and sewer utility revenues. These bonds
are both payable through 2019, The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life
of these bonds is $6,104,154. Pledged sales taxes received in the current year were $2,098,652 and
net water and sewer utility revenues were $1,489,135 for total pledged revenues of $3,587,787.
Debt service payments of $608,690 for the curent fiscal year were 17% of total pledged revenues
for these bonds.

Utility Net Revenues Pledge — The City has also pledged the net water and sewer utility revenues
to repay the following notes payable: $4,938,787 of 1998 CWSRF, $2,160,000 of 2009 DWSRF
and $2,860,000 of 2011 CWSRF Oklahoma Water Resources Board Notes Payable. Proceeds
from the bonds provided for the purchase or construction of water and sewer systems. The bonds
are payable from pledged net water and sewer utility revenues through 2021, 2030 and 2032,
respectively. The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of these notes
is $8,130,010, Pledged net water and utility revenmes in the current fiscal year were $1,489,133.
Debt service payments of $856,278 for the current fiscal year were 57.5% of total pledged
revenues for these notes.

9. Risk Management

The City is exposed to. various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural
disasters. The City manages these various tisks of loss as follows:

s General Liability and Physical Property — Covered through participation in Oklahoma
Municipal Assutance Group risk entity pool (1)

¢ Worker’s Compensation — Worker’s compensation is covered through patticipation in the
Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group nisk entity pool (2)

(1) Liubility Protection Plan

The basic insurance agresments cover claims against municipalities for all government functions,
utilities, and services covered in the Plan. These include bodily injury, propetty damage, wrongful
acts, personal injury, and related torts under the state tort claims law and federal civil rights laws.
All public officials, employees, services, and municipal fimetions are covered unless they are
specifically listed as exclusions in the Plan,

The title to all asseis acquired by the Plan are vested in the Group. In the event of termination of
the Group, such propesty shall belung to the then members of the Group in equal shares. Bach
participating City pays all costs, premiums, or other fees attributable to its respective participation
in the Plan, and is responsible for its obligation under any confract entered itto with the Plan.

Reserves for claim losses include provisions for reported claims on a case basis and an estimate of
claitns incurred but not reported limited by aggregate and individual loss levels as specified by the
Plan's reinsurance contracts. These credits, if any, represent contingent liabilities of the Flan if the
reinsurer was unable to meet its obligations under the reinsurance agreement.
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The Plan's insurance agreetnents are reinsured for excess losses based upon the contract year. The
significant components of each reinsurance contract can be obtained from the Plan's annmal
financial report. :

(2) Worker's Compensation

The title to all assets acquired by the Plan are vested in the Plan. In the event of termination of the
Plan, such property shall belong to the then members of the Plan in equal shares, Each participating
city pays for all costs, premiums, or other fees attributable to its respective participation in the Plan,
policy or service established under the agreement establishing the Oklahoma Municipal Assurance
Group, and is responsible for its obligations under any contract entered into with the Plan,

Specific aggregate stop loss coverage is provided by Comp Source,

Reserves for policy and contract claims provide for reported claims on a case basis and a provision
for incurred but not reported claims limited to specific retention levels for each member as outlined
in the Plan’s reinsurance agreement.

The Plan worker's compensation coverage is reinsured for losses in excess of respective retention
levels. The reinsurance agreement covers losses incurred within the effective period of the
agreement, Each Plan member’s Lability for claims losses is limited to their individual retention
levels as outlined in the Plan’s reinsurance agreement.

( ) Management belicves the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude amy
' significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation;

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of
governmental operations. The financial staterents do not include aceruals or provisions for loss
contingencies that may result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad
valorem tax over a three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court
assessed judgment rendered against the City, While the outcome of the above noted proceedings
cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute
relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or judgment not covered by insnrance
would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.
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Federal and State Award Programs:

The City of Bixby participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to yeat.
Tn 2012, the City’s involvement in federal and state award programs was material. The grant/loan
programs are often subject to additional audits by agenis of the granting or loaning agency, the
purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grapt or loan. The
City has not been notified of any noncompliance with fedetal or state award requirements. Any
Jisbility for reimbursement which may arise as a result of these aundits cannot be reasonably
determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

Non-cancelable Operating Leases:

The City has a lease with the City of Tulsa for the purchase of water. The lease is based on a
price per gallon. Purchases were approximately $3,384,000 during the year.

Construction Commitments.

The following constrnetion contracts were outstanding and payable at June 30, 2012:

Amount
Project by Activity Ouistanding
Public Safety $ 433,465
Streets 5 346,874
Water and Sewer Projects $ 124,850

11, Pension Plan Participation
The City of Bixby participates in four pension or retirement plans:

‘% Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) ~ a statewide cost-
sharing plan,
e Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) — & statewide cost-sharing
plan.
Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System. (OPERS) — a statewide cost-sharing plan.
e Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund — an agent multiple-employer defined contribution
plan,

Firefighters’ Plan:

Pursoant to the requirements of Title 11, section 49-102, the City of Bixby participates in the statewide
cost-sharing mukti-employer defined benefit plan administered by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension
Board on behalf of both paid and vohumteer firefighters. The paid firefighter contributes 8% to the plan.
The City is required by state law to contribute 13% per year per paid firefighter to the statewide plan.
The plan is funded by contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state
appropriations, as necessary.

‘A copy of the Firefighters Statewide Pension Plan financial statements cen be obtained from the

Oklahoma Firefighters Pension System, 4545 Lincoln Blvd. Suite 263, Oklahoma City, OK, 73105-3707,
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Police Plan:

Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 50-102, the City of Bixby participates in the statewide
cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan adwinistered by the Okiahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System (OPPRS). The paid police person contributes 8% to the plan. The City is required by
state law to contribute 13% per year per paid police person to the statewide plan. The plan is funded by
conttibutions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary, :

The OPPRS issues a publicly available report that includes financial statements, which can be
obtained from the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, 1001 N.W. 63" Street, Oklahoma
City, OK, 73116-7335. '

Employees Plan:

The City provides a pension benefit for all of its full-time employees with the exception of the police and
fire departments, through the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). The
employes’s contribution rate is 3.5%. The City’s contribution rate is 16.5%. The plan is funded by
contributions from participating employers, insurance premivm taxes, and state approptiations, as
necessary.

A copy of OPERS financial statempents can be obtained from the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement
Systern, 2101 N. Lincoln Blvd,, Reom 580, Oklahoma City, OK, 731.05.

Summary af Contributions — Cost Sharing Plans:

Oklahova Fitefighto's Pension Qklaliomn Police Pension Oklahomua Public
and Retivonaont Bystenn and Rafiremont System Employees Retirerient Systetn,
Hiscal Reyguired Pescentage Figeal Required Porcenlage Fieal Required Petcentage
Year LCoiributipn Contributed Year _ Copicbaion Contrilated Year Contribution Contritnted
2010 $ 129,707 100%. 2010 $ 137,583 100% 2010 $ 315458 100%
2011 $ 120467 100% 2011 $ 131,369 160% 2011 336980 160%
012 $ 130,366 100% 2012 3 130,198 100% 2012 § 361,636 100%;

The state made on-behalf payments of $115,913 for the police pension system and $278,775 for the fire
pengion during the current fiscal year. These are repotted as both intergovernmental reveties and public
safety expenses.

OMRF Plans:

The City has also provided for two defined contribution plans with the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement
Fund. The plan’s custodian is JPP Morgan Chase Bank. According to state law, the authority for
establishing or amending the plan’s provisions rests with the City Coumeil,

In both plans, the plan participant is the City Manager. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend
solely on amounts contributed to the plan, investment earnings, and forfeitures may ot may not be
allocated to such participant’s account. The City adopted variable funding plans where the contribution
rate may be vatied from year to year by the exployer.
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In the first plan: The City Manager vests at service inception and is entitled to 100% of contributions.
The budgeted contribution rate for this plan was 2% of anmual covered payroll. The City Manager is
permitted to make voluntary after-tax contributions which was 0% of annua) covered payroll.

In the second plan: The City Manager vests after 4 years from his hire date of May 22, 2010. The
budgeted rate was based on contractual terms where the City contributes 4.75% of the City Manager’s
annual base salary at the conclusion of each year served. The City Manager is permitted to make
voluntary aftex-tax contributions. No such election was made.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the following amounts related to both defined contribution plans were:

Payrol! for covered employees §'153,976
Ermployer (City) contributions § 10,415

12, Subsequent Events

On July 23, 2012, the BPWA approved the awarding of the Bixby Public Works Authority Utility System
Revenue Promissory Note, Refunding Series 2012 to JP Morgan Chase Bank at the interest rate of
1.43%, principal amount of $5,255,000. This is to refund the Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002
and the 1998 CWSRF Note Payable.
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Genoral Fupd
Vaxiance with.
Astusl Amounis, nal B -
Budgeied Axonnis Budpgiary Basks Posiflye (Nagative)
il
Beginning Budgetary Fund Baance: § 230232 § 2319232 § 3,106,254 8§ 787,022
Resources (Iuflows):
Sales and use tax 3,914,299 3,914,259 4,197,303 283,004
Franchise and miscellansous taxes . 319,500 819,500 934,968 115,468
Intergovernmental 197,000 197,000 206,655 9,655
Licenses and permits 300,700 300,700 326,095 25,3935
Charges forsetvices ] o 223,000 223,000 237,585 14,385
Fines & forfeitures 650,000 661,403 783,458 122,055
Investment earnitigs 12,000 12,000 10,179 (1,821)
Miscellaneous 201,000 233,965 327,082 93,117
Trangfierin 60,000 60,000 1,747 (58,253)
Total resources (lflows) 6,377,499 6421867 1,025,072 603,203
Amonnty avallable for approprintlon 3,696,731 §,741,099 10,131,326 1,390,227
Clinrges to Appropriations (Qutflows):
Adsinistration 371,667 407,088 386,890 20,198
Attorney 48,810 92072 94,764 (2,692)
Municipal court’ 84,605 100,409 98,679 1,730
Comnunity service 5,005 5,005 3,757 1,248
Genesal government 1,209,224 1,211,546 775,784 435,562
Police 2,287,550 2,353,213 2,388,391 (35,673}
Pire 1,759,330 1,776,319 1,737,916 38,403
Emergency Management : 35,624 35,634 26,061 9,573
Streets 461,818 486,920 455,082 1,838
Park 50,761 50,761 30,240 20,521
Cemgtery 62,442 63,866 60,524 2,942
Transfors out 50,000 170,000 170,000 .
Tota) Charges to Appropriations 6,466,346 6,752,633 6,258,988 492 645
Futx] balances - eoding & gﬁm,sss 3 1,988 465 $ 3,872,338 $ 1,883 872
Reconciliation to Statement of Revenies, Expenditures, and Change in Pund Balance;
Rural Fire Fumd Balancs 1,692
Fishing License Fund Bulance 64,476
Carnetery Benutification Fund Balance 1,323
Cemetery Maintenence Fund Balance 45 480
Total General Fimd Fund Balance 3 3,085,300

Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

L3 - .

1. The budgetary comparison schedule is reported on a GAAP basis using the modified accrual
basis with the exception of on-behalf payments made by the state related to firefighter and
police pension and capital lease proceeds.

2, The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of
appropriation. within a fund require the approval of the City Manager. All supplemental
appropriations require the approval of the City Council. Supplemental appropriations must
be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector,
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3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrusl basis ag shown in the schedule below:

(General
' Fund

"Total revemie - budgetary basis [ 7,025,072
On-behalf revenus 304,688

Total roveiue - GAAP basis 5 7419,760
Total expenditures - budgetary basis 6,238,988
On-behalf expenses 304,688 .

Total expenses - GAAP basis 8 6,053,676

4, In the General Fund the City had a negative variance in the following departments:

General Fund — Aftomey $ 2692
General Fund — Police $ 35678
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENITS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Flehing Crmatory Cometery,

Songral, Bual Fire, Liconwo Boaufifigation.  Malntenange,
ASBETS Eund Acgount Aczount Aggount Asnsount Telal
Cash and cash aquivalonts § 247,189 L3 1682 5 26208 5 1,373 $ 4,440 $ 2266902
investmanis 1,287,337 - 38,388 “ 1,323,126
Recslvible from other governments 608,713 - . - e 808,713
Eug from other funds 0,081 i < - - 98,081
Taxss rocelvatie, nal 91,464 % 8 i - 91,404
Court fines receivable, nel §71,200 4 e, = “ &11,200
Ambulance receivabla, net 14,088 LR ES s & 14,058
Gther recsivabios 26 804 . - : - - 5,504
Total assets  AEbrEze § - ighe §EAEE ¥ ISR E A 450,627
LIABILITIES ANL FUND BALANCES
Liabilittes:
Accounts peyable $ 135998 § - & & & 50 $ 382  § 144510
Astrusd payroll 182,435 * & e , 192,435
Due o other funds 142,016 -, 40 kS 578 149,633
Due to bondholders £4.420 - e “ 54,420
Dafarmt ravsnue 456,784 T @ e " 456,784
Chher payables 6,558 - LN e - B4
Total labllkisg 895,158 ~ 1) i 1,080 1,004,418
Furd batances:
Asslgned 3,481 482 1,682 84476 1,323 - 45,480 8,694,429
Unassigned 380,888 S - o = 390,886
Total fund balances 3,872,980 188 AT 1398 A5 460 A88E 300
Total abiitles and fund balances § 4507 500 [ 1 5392 $ 4586 & 1,373 E G, 4400 4,580,627
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — General Fund |
Accounts — For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Flstipa, ~ _Gomstary

Gembtery,
Rural F Liconse Besutification,  Malnignance
Aggoupl Account Ascount Avsount Total

REVENUES

Salog and use lex 5 4,197,309 3 - ] - $ - $ - $ 4,197,303
Franthise and miscellaneous taxes 874,968 & i ", ¥ 874,968
Intergovemmental 601,943 & “x - 5 801,343
Licensss and permits 328,095 ", 2,004 Wi w 334490
Charges for services 237,585 17,650, K 50 20,720 276,008
Fines & forfatiuras 703,456 - " - i -783,458
investmant samings 10179 'S 100 Com 112 10,481
Miscallanaous 327,082 — - - . 327,082
Total revenuaa 7,356,013 17,660 8,004 B0 20,832 7,406,839
EXPENDITURES

Administration 368,640 - x 386,800
Cliy attomay 04,764 W 2 - - 84,764
Municipal coutt ’ 98,679 4 o n # 98,679
Communliy service 3,757 " = # & 3,767
Gonoral govamment 775,764 P s £ e 776,784
Palics 2,474,506 w0 L kg - 2,474,506
Fira 2,010,811 w - - b 2,010,811
Etniergency Management 28,081 - . - o 28,061
Straats 476,224 £l e e - 478,224
Cuilture and recreation 9,422 5 9,613 - - 19,336
Cemelary 80,924 B i 100 61,758 122,782
Caplial Outlay 45,037 - . i 48037
Debt Service:

Principal 16,807 19,518 - ¥ w 36,325
Interest.and ofher charges B - o - 8,481

Total Expendiiuras B4 22 950 a3 100 61,768 8,578,405
Excess (deficlancy) of ravenusa ovar

expandiures ar4.aar, 16,308 5k {8} {40,928) BaT 34
JOTHER FINANGING EOURCES (USES) .

Transfers in @1,747 7,000 & - 50,000 118,141
Yransfers out (A7a.000 - . - o {17090,
‘Total other financing scwees and uses {108,.253) 7,000 - - B,000 (51,363),
Net change In fund balances 166,084 1,692 {818) {50) 8,074 115,681
Fund balances - baghaing 3,908,264 - 65,008 i PTE 36,406 3,209,024
Fund balances - ending $ 387 1,692 § 84470 5 10z 8 46480 5 3,085,308
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REFORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

ABSETS
Currart assets:
Cash and cash egulvalents
Invostments
Restrictad:
Oash and cash squivalants
Dus from other funds
Acoounis Receivalbie, net
Total current assets
Naore-ournant asels:
Rastrioted;
Gash and cagh squivalants
Investments
Caphtal Assols; :
Land end sonstruction in-progroas
Qthier capital sssets,net of sccumulated depreciation
Unamortized debt ks costs
Toted nom-curment assels
Tt asssts

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilifes:
Accounts payable
Puyroll payable
Accruad interost payable
Dite to ofher funds
Raposits subject to refund
Compansated shsonces
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Total cuwent lak¥ilies
Now-clirrant Rabiiites:
Conmpangsted absarmes
Deposits sublact to refund
Nates payable
Bonds payable
Tolal non-suivent fizbllties
Tolat labiltes

NET ASBETS
Investod i1 capital assate, ret of relztad debt
Ragtritad for daht sorvice
Unrésiristed
Total net assela

. 2002 Vil
Bevenun Bond
Moter Doposit, DAWES Lonstruilon,
EBEVA Agtount Agzoynt Totd
$ 1,241,478 § 76208  $ 18621 % -3 133003
» 102,679 - “ 102,679
35,084 S 3 56 36,087
48,508 . i - ea,ase 134,124
1,448,608 - e 1,440
% 760,060 178,676 56271 a5 3,9_4_5_4%
1,400 17,303 s - 849,708
704,892 480,010 A - 1,164,530
SR3,000 - 35,000 - 828,050
A4,574.287 . 487,182 - 45,1411 Abg
341,208 _ - - - 541,208
T7.044507 477,321 522,162 . 45,0143, 68D
45,825 481 656,908 B37,TT3 68812 51,080,472
492,531 = i - 452,631
40,797 s . 40,197
80,334 - 90,334
#,280 13,182 &4 - 21,462
;, 47633 - . 47833
552 - ‘. - 20,982
78,791 3 @ . 718,781
) - . - 855,000
1%@5,&’765 0,818 p - 1,747 580
83,847 B [ P 83847
- 420,689 = - 428,688
7,329,082 » B - T 00
2,850 - - . 2 050,204
10,263,223 475,888 - - 10,662 611
11,042 908 TR - - 12.%40.491
33,044,782 522,182 - 54,486,914
1,448 675 - - 1,445,675
85,008 185,70 JBet 88,912
"ﬁ'ﬁ% PRE0E. B ie,70d TATIra. 3 88,612 ﬁﬁ
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
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hocounts — Yenr Ended June 30, 2012

2o0z.utllity,
Revenus Bond.
Matar Deposit. Gonstrution,
BEWA Aggount E8 Actou Ascount Lotal

REVENUES
Chargas for servioes;

Water ] 6,14202% & PR » % » $ 6,142,023

Sower 886,901 - i - 988,30

Miscallansous 26,843 . 6,864 - 32,807

Talnl operating revanues 7,152,687 - a:§u4 - 7,189,031
QPERATING EXPENSES ]
Adminigiration 1,398610 i i - - 4,390,619
Waber 9,833,085 o S 3,633,965
Wagtewaler 436,512 F 8 . 436,912
Amortization sxpanse 105,322 . P - 105,322

i lon ap7.112 - 26,578 - 82,680

Total operating #xpensas 6,782.m__§30 “ BTl - §,768,508

Operating inoome (loas) 418,737 - {18,614), - AM123
NON-DPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES}
Interest and invesiment reverue 8,166 i 8 42 4216
Galn {loss) on vapltal asset dispoaal (84.642) w s - (84.642)
Interast expense [382,465) - - - {488,465)

Total non-opatating revanua (expensss) (450,941) - & 42 i (450 BO1}

Income [loss) before transfars 140,204) = (18,806} &2 (58,768)
Capilal contribuilons 435,606 W - w’ 436,598
Tranefers In 5,264,058 ey * - 5,354,850
Transfers oul {8.215,605) - = - (3,216,665

Ghange in nat geeeta 2,534,656 . (16,608} 42 2,518,002

Total net asssts - bagnng 35,340,847 145,743 566,378 gﬂ Brll 38,131 969
Total net assets-- eding % 37,876,503 3 165,193 [ EEYRAE) ] R 5 3!1.337!951
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2002 1998, 2009 & 2411
tllity Roveriue Bonds OVWRE Notes
Gross Revenue Available for Dbt Bervige:
Operating revenues of leased systems 1) $ 7,159,631 % 7,159,631
Sules tax phdged 2,098,652 ~
Total Gross Revenves Available 9,258,283 7,159,631
System Operating Bxpenses (1) 5,670,496 5,670,496
Net Revanues Avallabile for Dabi Serviee § 3,589,187 § 1,489,138
Dbt Servien Riquiternenta:
Aversga unnual debt service - 2002 utility revenne bonds ' % o613 8 .
Maginmn snmaal dabt servies - OWRE promissory bote - 1098 CWSRY - 326,168
Maxinnan atnal debt sarvics - GWRB prowlsacty noto - 2009 DWARF - 102,685
Kagironm pianal deobd secvice - OWRB protodssory note - 2011 CWSREP = 245802
Total Debt Sexvies Requirements 3 476,113 § 544,856
Coverage T50% 231%
Coverage Reguivernent 125% 125%
(1} Leaged aystems include water, sewer and administration thercof, B
2002 Utility 1998 OWRB
Revenne Bond Note Payable
Balance in Reserve Accoont, June 30, 2012 3476,112 5355,368
Required Balance of Reserve per Agtoement 476,112 355,368
Excess of Account Balance over Required Balance - >
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CITY OF BIXBY

Bixby, Oklahoma
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
(‘“*) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 .
Federal Grantor/ Federal Program
Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA or Award Revenue Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Amount Collected Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation:

Recreational Trails Program 20.219 65,000 26,085 26,085
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 20614 3,000 2,208 2,205
Alchohol Impalred Driving Countermeaslres 20.601 20,000 13,110 13,110

Sub-fotal U.S. Department of Transportation 88,000 41,400 41,400

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commetce:

CDBG - 08 14.228 71,215 - 4,750 4,750
CDBG - 10 14.228 76,268 1,975 1,975
CDBG - 11 14.228 53,987 52,080 52,080

Sub-total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 201,470 58,805 58,805

U.S. Department of Justice:

( ) Passed through the Oklahema Department of Justice:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 18.738 10,000 10,000 10,000
Builetproof Vest Partnership Program 16.6C7 4,400 436 435
Sub-fotal U.S. Department of Justice 14,400 10,435 10,435

Environmental Protection Agency;

Passed thraugh the Oklahoma Water Resources Boatd.

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water Revolving 66.458 ) 1,183,810 1,183,810 1,183,810
Sub-total Environmental Protetion Agency 1,183,810 1,183,810 1,183,810
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,487,680 § 1,294,450 §$ 1,294,450

Note A - This schedule was prepared on an accrual {GAAP) basis of accounting consistent with the preparation of the
basic financial stalements,
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CITY OF BIXBY
Bixby, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1.

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements of the City of
Bixby.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. No material weaknesses are identified.

Noinstances of noncon’ipliance material to the financial statements of City of Bixby were disclosed during
the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
“Independent Auditor's Report .on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct Material
Effect on Each Major Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-
133". No material weaknesses are identified.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for City of Bixby expresses an
unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for City of Bixby required to be
reported In this Schedule.

The programs tested as major programs included: Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving
Funds — CFDA No. 66.458.

The threshold used for distinguishing between Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Bixby did qualify as a low-tisk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

1.

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

1,

None
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CITY OF BIXBY
Bixby, Oklahoma

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

There were no prior year audit findings.

Year Ended June 30, 2012
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